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Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders 
 
Dear Shareholder, 
 
On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the Annual Report of UIL Energy Ltd, covering the Company's 
activities for the twelve months to 30 June 2015.  
 
In a key milestone for the company, UIL Energy listed on the ASX (ASX:UIL) on 6 November 2014 raising 
approximately $4.2 million.  Although these are challenging times in the capital markets for junior energy 
companies, the capital raised included additional investment from existing shareholders and directors, which 
underlines the confidence in UIL Energy’s strategy in Western Australia.  
 
Activity across the Perth Basin continues to ramp up and, as envisaged by the Company, is now one of the most 
active on-shore drilling areas for petroleum in Australia. An exciting aspect of UIL Energy’s permits is the continued 
positive results from neighbouring operators in the Perth Basin.  AWE Limited’s (AWE) drilling success at the 
Waitsia/Senecio field in the Perth Basin, uncovering potentially the largest conventional onshore gas discovery in 
Western Australia since the 1960s, has highlighted the significant prospectivity of the north Perth Basin.  While 
further technical work needs to be performed to confirm exact depths within UIL Energy’s permits, indications 
from nearby wells suggest the formations productive of petroleum that AWE encountered continues into the 
north-western area of UIL Energy northern permits.  
 
UIL Energy has focussed its efforts on the Perth Basin where there is significant inherent value in its permits.  UIL 
Energy maintains a high-equity position in all of its permits providing maximum flexibility in the development of 
potential farm-out and funding arrangements. With the challenging environment for capital, UIL Energy has 
applied a disciplined approach in progressing its exploration and strategic objectives whilst efficiently allocating 
available cash resources. 
 
Looking forward, it is going to be a defining year ahead for the Perth Basin, with the recent positive exploration 
results and continuing activity.  Due to UIL Energy maintaining one of the largest centrally-located group of permits 
and the company’s own upcoming exploration efforts, the Company is well-positioned strategically for its 
shareholders. 
 
On behalf of the Board I would like to thank the UIL Energy team for their efforts over the last year. More 
importantly, I would like to thank shareholders for your continued support and faith as the Company continues to 
progress its exploration activities. 
  

Yours Sincerely, 

 

Simon Hickey 
Chairman 
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Review of Operations 
 

UIL Energy Ltd (UIL Energy) is primarily focused on the Perth Basin where it has over 0.6 million gross acres 
(approximately 2,558km2).   UIL Energy’s permits have significant gas potential with multiple leads identified. UIL 
Energy exploration portfolio also has pipeline infrastructure in place or in proximity to UIL Energy’s permits. 

UIL Energy maintains a high equity position and operatorship in all permits providing maximum flexibility in the 
development of potential farm out and funding arrangements.   

Updated Technical Review 

UIL Energy has reviewed historic 2D seismic data along with the drilling results of previously drilled wells within, 
and adjacent to UIL Energy’s central (EP 447, EP 488 and EP 489) and north Perth basin permits (EPA 82, EPA 98 and 
EPA 99).  The review has resulted in UIL Energy upgrading its technical assessment of the exploration potential in 
these areas. 

The review identified 14 exploration leads, five in UIL Energy’s northern Perth basin permits (refer to Figure 1 
below) and nine in its central Perth basin permits (refer to Figure 2 below).  Mapping of existing data indicates the 
leads range in size up to 50 km2 in area.   

The leads are primarily Jurassic in age, comprising the Cockleshell Gully (Cattamarra Coal Measures and Eneabba) 
and Cadda Formations.  These formations contain the Gingin, Red Gully, Warro, Mt Horrner, North Yardanogo, 
Erregulla and Ocean Hill gas and liquids fields and accumulations in neighbouring tenements and Walyering in UIL’s 
EP447 permit.  

The 14 conventional leads are in addition to multiple unconventional tight gas leads that have previously been 
identified.  UIL Energy will look to optimise well locations to test both conventional and unconventional targets that 
may occur in stacked sequences thereby maximising the chances of success. 

The leads are interpreted to potentially contain gas and gas/liquids which, if successfully drilled, can promptly be 
commercialised in the undersupplied Western Australia gas market.  UIL Energy plans to further de-risk the leads 
by shooting 2D and 3D seismic over them in order to establish drillable prospects. 
 
UIL Energy is planning to acquire up to 264km of 2D seismic across its three central Perth Basin permits (EP447, 
EP488 and EP489) aimed at upgrading the nine conventional leads already identified in these permits.  
 
Permit Management 
  
On EP447, UIL Energy and its joint venture partner, Eneabba Gas Ltd, has obtained approval from the Department 
of Mines and Petroleum (DMP) to vary the year-two work program to the acquisition of 130km of 2D seismic and 
reprocessing of historic data.  
 
The DMP has also approved a revised work commitment program for EP488 and EP489 that allows the company to 
shoot 2D seismic in these permits during 2016. 
 
UIL Energy, as Operator of all three permits, has submitted the environmental documents for the 2D seismic 
survey to the DMP and other environmental agencies for approval.  Subject to receiving all statutory approvals, the 
new seismic survey is scheduled to be undertaken during the first half 2016.    
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The Native Title and Heritage Protection Agreements (HPA) are in place for EP 488 and EP 489.   HPA negotiations 
are proceeding with the three northern permits EPA 82, EPA 98 and EPA 99.  These permits are expected to be 
formally granted early 2016. 
 
Competitor Activity 
 
Competitor activity continues to ramp up in the Perth basin.  Figure 2 below indicates the proposed industry 
activity in the Perth basin in the coming year.  
 
Australian Worldwide Exploration Limited (AWE) announced during September 2014 that the Waitsia/Senecio field 
had the potential to be the largest onshore gas discovery in Western Australia since the 1960s, with the Permian 
age sequence providing initial 3C Contingent Resources of up to 1,170 billion cubic feet.  AWE reported 9 March 
2015 on the testing program at Senecio-3. Senecio-3 achieved an average gas flow rate of 12.3 MMscf/d from the 
Waitsia Sandstone and confirmed the commercial potential of the Waitsia field.   

AWE also reported 7 May 2015 that Irwin-1 was a gas discovery with an estimated 2C Contingent Resource of 149 
BCF of gas in the Dongara/Wagina sandstones in the Irwin and Synaphea structures. 

UIL Energy’s 100% owned northern Perth Basin permits are approximately 35 kilometers southeast of AWE’s 
Waitsia gas discovery.  Based on historic seismic and nearby well data, UIL Energy permits are interpreted to 
contain similar reservoirs (although expected at greater depths) to those encountered by AWE.  These formations 
have historically shown elevated or very high gas shows.  UIL Energy will require further technical information, 
initially shooting 2D seismic in its northern Perth Basin permits, to confirm the drilling depths and possible 
thickness variations of the targeted formations.   

In addition to AWE’s discoveries, Warrego Energy Ltd (Warrego), have completed their 3D seismic program on EP 
469, a permit which is adjacent to UIL Energy’s EPA 82.  Warrego are planning the first horizontal well in the Perth 
Basin during 2016 close to UIL Energy’s EPA 82.   

In the central Perth Basin, the drilling of two back to back wells by Transerv Energy Ltd (ASX:TSV) and Alcoa at the 
nearby Warro Gas Project has recently commenced. Following the release of the rig from these wells, a well will be 
drilled by Empire Oil and Gas near their Gingin Red Gully field. 
 
Canning Basin 
 
Consistent with the company’s focus on the Perth Basin, three Canning Basin applications, SPA26, SPA40 and 
EPA97, have been allowed to expire or withdrawn and the areas surrendered back to the DMP.  
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Figure 2: Perth Basin Industry Activities 
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Directors' Report 
 
The Directors of UIL Energy Ltd present their report together with the financial statements of the consolidated 
entity consisting of UIL Energy Ltd (‘the Company’) and its controlled entities (‘the Group’) at the end of, or during, 
the year ended 30 June 2015 and the Independent Audit Report thereon. 
 
DIRECTORS  
 
The following persons were directors of UIL Energy Ltd during the financial year and up to the date of this report, 
unless otherwise stated: 
 
Simon Hickey 
B.Com, Grad Dip Applied Finance & Investment 
Executive Chairman (appointed 21 September 2011) 
 
Simon Hickey is the founder and Chairman of UIL Energy.  
 
He has over 20 years experience in the resources industry and has been a director of several ASX and TSX listed 
companies. In addition to his experience with public companies, Simon has established a number of successful 
private businesses in Australia and North America.  
 
Mr Hickey has a Bachelor of Commerce and a Graduate Diploma of Applied Finance and Investment. He is also a 
member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. 
 
Mr Hickey is a member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. 
 
During the past three years, Mr Hickey has also served as a director of the following ASX listed company: 

 Macarthur Minerals Ltd (resigned 30 August 2013) 
 
John de Stefani 
B.Bus, MBA 
Chief Executive Officer and Director (appointed as a Director, 11 Jan 2012) 
 
John de Stefani was appointed Chief Executive Officer of UIL Energy in April 2012.   
 
Prior to joining UIL Energy, Mr de Stefani was CEO of Bow Energy Ltd during market cap growth phase of $50m to 
$550m and subsequently acquired by Arrow Energy in January 2012.  Prior to Bow, he spent over eight years as 
GM/Director of an expanding power generation business. 
 
Mr de Stefani is a chartered accountant with over 20 years of business experience.  He has a proven successful 
track record in project finance, business development and asset management with over eight years international 
energy experience working on projects in the US, UK, Egypt, Turkey and the Philippines.    
 
Mr de Stefani has a Bachelor of Business from the Queensland University of Technology and a MBA from the 
London Business School.  He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Australia and the Australian 
Institute of Company Directors. 
 
Mr de Stefani holds no other (ASX listed) directorships. 
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Keith Skipper 
B.Sc Hons (Geology), M.Sc (Geology) 
Non Executive Director (appointed 4 November 2011) 
 
Keith Skipper is a geologist, company executive and corporate non-executive director with over 40 years of diverse 
industry experiences. He holds a B.Sc. (Hons) degree in geology from Reading University (U.K.) and a M.Sc. 
(Geology) from McMaster University (Ontario, Canada). 
 
Mr Skipper is a member of various professional associations including the Australian Institute of Company 
Directors, member of the American Association of Petroleum Geologists, the Petroleum Exploration Society of 
Australia and a registered Professional Geologist in Alberta, Canada. 
 
He is an Australian citizen whose career experiences include evaluations and operations in many of the world’s 
petroleum basins including periods with AMOCO (acquired by BP), Bridge Oil Limited in Sydney, Australia, 
PanCanadian Petroleum Limited (now part of EnCana), and Antrim Energy Inc. He is currently a director of publicly 
listed Samson Oil and Gas Limited.  Mr Skipper advises and consults to various academic, financial and corporate 
entities on oil and gas exploration, including coalseam gas (“CSG”) and shale resource projects. 
 
Mr Skipper is Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. 
 
During the past three years, Mr Skipper has also served as a director of the following ASX listed companies: 

 Samson Oil and Gas Ltd* 
 Rawson Resource Ltd (resigned 14 December 2012) 

 
* Denotes current Directorship 
 
Stephen Bizzell 
B.Comm, MAICD  
Non Executive Director (appointed 1 August 2014) 
 
Stephen Bizzell is the Chairman of boutique corporate advisory and funds management group Bizzell Capital 
Partners Pty Ltd.  
 
Mr Bizzell was an Executive Director of Arrow Energy Ltd from 1999 until its acquisition in 2010 by Shell and 
PetroChina for $3.5 billion. He was instrumental in Arrow’s corporate and commercial success and its growth from 
a junior explorer to a large integrated energy company. He was also a founding director of Bow Energy Ltd until its 
$550 million takeover.  
 
Mr Bizzell qualified as a Chartered Accountant and early in his career was employed in the Corporate Finance 
division of Ernst & Young and the Corporate Tax division of Coopers & Lybrand. He has had considerable 
experience and success in the fields of corporate restructuring, debt and equity financing, and mergers and 
acquisitions. He has over 20 years’ corporate finance and public company management experience in the 
resources sector in Australia and Canada with various public companies.  
 
Mr Bizzell is a member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. 
 
During the past three years, Mr Bizzell has also served as a director of the following ASX listed companies: 

 Armour Energy Ltd* 
 Diversa Ltd* 
 Titan Energy Services Ltd* 
 Stanmore Coal Ltd* 
 Renascor Resources Ltd (formerly Renaissance Uranium Ltd)* 
 Laneway Resources Limited (formerly Renison Consolidated Mines NL)* 
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 Bow Energy Ltd (resigned 11 January 2012) 
 Dart Energy Ltd (resigned 26 November 2013) 
 Hot Rock Ltd (resigned 14 August 2014) 

 
* Denotes current Directorship 
 
SECRETARIES 
 
Drew Speedy 
B.Bus, CPA, AGIA 
(Co-Company Secretary & CFO) (appointed Company Secretary 1 May 2014 & CFO 1 January 2015) 
 
Mr Speedy has 14 years experience in finance roles within the resources industry predominately in ASX listed 
upstream oil and gas companies. He was Financial Controller of Bow Energy Ltd until its sale to Arrow Energy and 
has held finance roles with other unconventional gas companies including Arrow Energy, Blue Energy and 
Queensland Gas Company during the company’s market cap growth phase from $20 million to ~$2 billion.  
 
Mr Speedy has a Bachelor of Business from the Queensland University of Technology. He is a member of the 
Certified Practicing Accountants and the Governance Institute of Australia. 
 
Duncan Cornish 
B.Bus (ACCTCY), ACA 
(Co-Company Secretary) (appointed Company Secretary 24 September 2013 & CFO from 30 July 2014 to 1 
January 2015) 
 
Mr Cornish is an accomplished and highly regarded corporate administrator and manager. He has many years 
experience in pivotal management roles in capital raisings and stock exchange listings for numerous companies on 
the ASX, AIM Market of the London Stock Exchange and the Toronto Stock Exchange. Highly skilled in the areas of 
company financial reporting, company regulatory, secretarial and governance areas, business acquisition and 
disposal due diligence, he has worked with Ernst & Young and PricewaterhouseCoopers both in Australia and the 
UK.  
 
Mr Cornish is currently Company Secretary and CFO of other listed companies on the ASX and TSX-V where he has 
assisted in their listing and capital raising. He is supported by a small experienced team of accountants and 
administrators.  
 
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES 
 
As at the date of this report, the interests of the Directors in the shares, options and performance rights of UIL 
Energy Ltd are shown in the table below: 
 

Director 
Ordinary 

Shares 

Share Options 
($0.30 @             

30-Jun-17) 

Share Options 
($0.24 @            

31-Dec-18) 

  

Performance 
Rights  

Share Options 
($0.24 @             

31-Dec-16) 

Share Options 
($0.20 @             

31-Dec-15) 

Simon Hickey 18,640,044 2,000,000 842,074 - - 240,000 
John de Stefani 12,472,477 3,000,000 1,223,401 - 825,000 430,000 
Keith Skipper - 500,000 - - - - 
Stephen Bizzell 8,733,258 500,000 2,655,400 2,000,000 512,500 - 
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INCORPORATION 
 
UIL Energy Australia Pty Ltd was incorporated on 21 September 2011.  On 27 April 2012 UIL Energy Australia Pty 
Ltd become a public company and was renamed UIL Energy Ltd.   
 
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 
 
The principal activities of the consolidated entity during the financial period were oil and gas exploration. There 
were no significant changes in the nature of the consolidated entity’s principal activities during the financial 
period. 
 
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 
 
Information on the operations of the Group during the financial year and up to the date of this report are set out 
separately in the Annual Report under Review of Operations. 
 
OPERATING RESULTS 
 
The net result of operations after applicable income tax expense for the consolidated entity for the year ended 30 
June 2015 was a loss of $2,179,681 (2014: loss of $3,005,789). 
 
REVIEW OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 
 
Share Capital 
 
• During the financial year the Company issued the following share capital: 

• On 19 August 2014 the Company lodged a Prospectus with ASIC. The Prospectus offered between 
21,000,000 and 30,000,000 New Shares for subscription at an Offer Price of $0.20 per New Share to raise 
a minimum of $4.2 million and a maximum of $6 million (before Offer costs).  For every 2 New Shares 
subscribed for, investors will be issued 1 free attaching New Option exercisable at $0.20 on or before 31 
December 2015. Upon the valid exercise of a New Option, in addition to being issued a Share, the holder 
will be issued one “Piggy-Back Option”, exercisable at $0.24 on or before 31 December 2018. The 
Company closed the offer on 17 October 2014 raising $4,203,200, a total of 21,016,000 New Shares and 
10,508,000 New options were issued under the offer. Following completion of the offer 4,773,000 Broker 
options were issued to Brokers and advisors of the offer that have an exercise price of $0.24 and an expiry 
date of 31 December 2018.   

• During August 2014, 2,680,000 fully paid ordinary shares were issued to sophisticated investors at an 
issue price of $0.125 raising $335,000. 

• During July 2014, 3,466,552 fully paid ordinary shares were issued at an issue price of $0.125 to Directors 
and employees of the Company in settlement of accrued salary and fees.  

• During July and August 2014, 3,816,000 fully paid ordinary shares were issued at an issue price of $0.125 
as a result of the conversion of 477,000 convertible notes. 

• During August 2014, 4,993,643 fully paid ordinary shares were issued at an issue price of $0.14 as a result 
of the conversion of 699,110 convertible notes. 

• During November 2014, 500,000 shares options were issued to a Director of the Company following 
shareholder approval at the 2014 AGM, the share options have an exercise price of $0.30 and expiry date 
of 30 June 2017 and vest on 24 February 2015. 

• During July 2014, 400,000 share options were issued to consultants of the Company, the share options 
have an exercise price of $0.24 an expiry date of 31 December 2018 and vest immediately. 

• During August 2014, 1,000,000 performance rights were issued to Directors and Executives of the 
Company, the performance rights do not have an exercise price and proportionally vest upon the 
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achievement of market based and retention based criteria at the vesting date of 18 August 2016. The 
Performance Rights have an expiry date of 18 August 2021. 

 
SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS 
 
In the opinion of the Directors, there were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company that 
occurred during the financial year under review not otherwise disclosed in this report or the financial statements 
of the Company for the financial year. 
 
DIVIDENDS PAID OR RECOMMENDED 
 
There were no dividends paid or recommended during the financial year (2014: nil). 
 
AFTER BALANCE DATE EVENTS 
 
The following significant events occurred following the reporting period: 
 

 During September 2015 the Company withdrew its application for EPA97 located in the Canning basin.  
   

There have been no other events other than those listed since 30 June 2015 that impact upon the financial report 
as at 30 June 2015. 
 
FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
The Company continues to identify and evaluate oil and gas exploration and evaluation opportunities that are 
perceived to offer outstanding value.  As the consolidated entity’s areas of interest are at an early stage of 
exploration, it is not possible to speculate likely developments from any of these exploration activities. 
 
There are no other developments of which the Directors are aware which could be expected to affect the results of 
the consolidated entity’s operations in subsequent financial years other than information which the Directors 
believe comment on, or disclosure of, would prejudice the interests of the consolidated entity.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES 
 
The consolidated entity is subject to environmental regulation in relation to its exploration activities. There are no 
matters that have arisen in relation to environmental issues up to the date of this report.  
 
REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) 
 
This remuneration report for the year ended 30 June 2015 outlines the remuneration arrangements of the 
Company in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 (the “Act”) and its regulations. This 
information has been audited as required by section 308(3C) of the Act.  

The remuneration report details the remuneration arrangements for key management personnel (“KMP”) who are 
defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of 
the Company, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of the Company, and 
includes the executive team. 

The remuneration report is presented under the following sections: 
 

1. Individual key management personnel disclosures 
2. Remuneration policy 
3. Non-executive director (NED) remuneration arrangements 
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4. Executive remuneration arrangements 
5. Company performance and the link to remuneration 
6. Executive contractual arrangements 
7. Equity instruments disclosures 

 
1. Individual key management personnel disclosures 
 
Key management personnel during the year include the following: 
 
Director Position 

Simon Hickey Executive Chairman   

John de Stefani Managing Director  

Keith Skipper Non-Executive Director  

Stephen Bizzell Non-Executive Director (appointed 1 August 2014) 

Executives Position 

Vic Palanyk Chief Operating Officer  

Drew Speedy Joint Company Secretary and CFO (Appointed CFO 1 January 2015)  

Duncan Cornish Joint Company Secretary and CFO (Appointed CFO 30 July 2014 and resigned 1 January 2015) 

  
2. Remuneration Policy 
 
UIL Energy Ltd’s remuneration strategy is designed to attract, motivate and retain Directors and employees by 
identifying and rewarding high performers and recognising the contribution of each person to the continued 
growth and success of the Company.  

The Board of Directors is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the Directors 
and the Executive team. The Board assesses the appropriateness of the nature and amount of remuneration of 
such officers on a periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with the overall objective 
of ensuring maximum shareholder benefit from the retention of a high quality Board and Executive team. Such 
officers are given the opportunity to receive their base remuneration in a variety of forms including cash and fringe 
benefits. It is intended that the manner of payments chosen will be optimal for the recipient without creating 
undue cost for the Company. Further details on the remuneration of Directors and Executives are set out in this 
Remuneration Report. 

The Company aims to reward the Executives with a level and mix of remuneration commensurate with their 
position and responsibilities within the Company. The Board’s policy is to align Executive objectives with 
shareholder and business objectives by providing a fixed remuneration component and offering long-term 
incentives. 

3. Non-executive director (NED) remuneration arrangements 

The board seeks to set aggregate remuneration at a level that provides the Company with the ability to attract and 
retain directors of the highest calibre, whilst incurring a cost that is acceptable to shareholders. The Company’s 
specific policy for determining the nature and amount of remuneration of Board members of the Company is as 
outlined below. 

The Constitution of the Company provides that the NED’s are entitled to remuneration as determined by the 
Company in general meeting to be apportioned among them in such manner as the Directors agree, and, in default 
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of agreement, equally. The aggregate maximum remuneration for NED's currently determined by the Board is 
$500,000. 
 
If a NED performs extra services, which in the opinion of the Directors are outside the scope of the ordinary duties 
of the Director, the Company may remunerate that Director by payment of a fixed sum determined by the 
Directors in addition to or instead of the remuneration referred to above. However, no payment can be made if 
the effect would be to exceed the maximum aggregate amount payable to NED’s. 
 
A NED is entitled to be paid travelling and other expenses properly incurred by them in attending Director’s or 
general meetings of the Company or otherwise in connection with the business of the Company. 
 
All Directors have the opportunity to qualify for participation in the Company’s Employee Share Option Plan, 
subject to the approval of shareholders. The remuneration of NED’s for the year ended 30 June 2015 is detailed in 
this Remuneration Report. 
 
4. Executive remuneration arrangements 
 
The Company aims to reward the Executives with a level and mix of remuneration commensurate with their 
position and responsibilities within the Company and so as to: 
 

 align the interests of the Executives with those of shareholders; 
 link reward with the strategic goals and performance of the Company; and 
 ensure total remuneration is competitive by market standards. 

 
The remuneration of Executives may from time to time be fixed by the Board. The remuneration will comprise a 
fixed remuneration component and may also include specific short and long-term incentives, in the form of: 
 

 performance based salary increases and/or bonuses; and/or 
 performance rights; and/or 
 the issue of options. 

 
The remuneration of the Executives employed by the Company for the year ending 30 June 2015 is detailed in this 
Remuneration Report. 
 
5. Company performance and the link to remuneration 
 
During the financial year, the Company has generated losses as its principal activity was exploration for 
economically viable reserves of both conventional and unconventional natural oil and gas. During the current 
financial period the Company successfully listed on the ASX at $0.20 per share, the closing share price for the 
company on the ASX as at 30 June 2015 was $0.053. As the Company is still in the exploration stage, the link 
between remuneration, Company performance and shareholder wealth is tenuous. The Company's valuation is 
subject to the influence of oil and gas prices and market sentiment toward the sector, and as such increases or 
decreases may occur quite independent of Executive performance or remuneration. 
 
6. Executive contractual arrangements 
 
It is the Board’s policy that contractual agreements are entered into with all Executives and employees. Contracts 
do not provide for pre-determined annual increases to compensation values. Rather the amount of compensation 
is determined by the Board in accordance with the remuneration principles previously described. Executives are 
entitled to their statutory entitlements of accrued annual leave and long service leave.   
 
 
 



15 
 

Executive contracts in place during the financial year: 
 

Name Term of Agreement 
Current Base Salary or Fees payable (exclusive 
of superannuation) 

Notice 
periods 

Simon Hickey 
(Executive Chairman) 

Commencing 19 August 
2014 expiring 19 August 
2016  

The Company entered into a new consulting 
agreement on 19 August 2014 with a monthly 
fee of $4,000.  

3 Months 

John de Stefani (Managing Director) Ongoing commencing 
16 April 2012 

The Company revised the terms of Mr de 
Stefani's employment agreement on 30 July 
2014 and as a result of the reduced working 
arrangements the annual salary reduced to 
$224,000 (previously $320,000). 

6 Months 

Vic Palanyk (Chief Operating Officer) Ongoing commencing 
22 October 2012 

The Company revised the terms of Mr Palanyk's 
employment agreement on 30 July 2014 and as 
a result of the reduced working arrangements 
the annual salary reduced to $168,000 
(previously $280,000). 

3 Months 

Drew Speedy 
(Chief Financial Officer & Company 
Secretary) (CFO appointed 1 January 
2015) 

Commencing 18 August 
2014 expiring 31 
December 2016 

The Company entered into consulting 
agreement with a daily rate of $1,000. 

1 Month 

Duncan Cornish 
(Chief Financial Officer & Company 
Secretary) (CFO appointed 30 July 
2014 and resigned 1 January 2015) 

Ongoing commencing 
30 July 2015 

Monthly fee of $4,583.33 whilst employed as 
CFO and Company Secretary. This fee reduced 
to $2,916.66 per month following resignation as 
CFO. 

1 Month 

 
Equity based entitlements of Key management personnel are detailed in section 7 below. 
 
Remuneration of key management personnel: 
 

 

Short term benefits 
Post- 

employment 

Share based 
payments 

Equity settled Total 
Consisting of 

options 
Relating to 

bonuses 
 Salary & 

Fees Cash Bonus Superannuation 
Options/ 

Rights    
Directors $ $ $ $ $ % % 
Simon Hickey 

2015 
2014 

 
65,875 

109,700 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
12,986 
37,548 

 
78,861 

147,248 

 
16.5 
25.5 

 
- 
- 

John de Stefani 
2015 
2014 

 
145,600 
260,132 

 
- 
- 

 
13,832 

- 

 
23,266 
56,322 

 
182,698 
316,454 

 
12.7 
17.8 

 
- 
- 

Keith Skipper 
2015 
2014 

 
24,000 
30,000 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 

9,387 

 
24,000 
39,387 

 
- 

23.8 

 
- 
- 

Stephen Bizzell(a) 
2015 
2014 

 
24,000 

- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
8,113 

- 

 
32,113 

- 

 
25.3 

- 

 
- 
- 

Tim Cummings (b) 
2015 
2014 

 
- 

27,000 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 

55,963 

 
- 

82,963 

 
- 

67.5 

 
- 
- 
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Short term benefits 
Post- 

employment 

Share based 
payments 

Equity settled Total 
Consisting of 

options 
Relating to 

bonuses 
 Salary & 

Fees Cash Bonus Superannuation 
Options/ 

Rights    
Executives $ $ $ $ $ % % 
Vic Palanyk  

2015 
2014 

 
147,374 
286,750 

 
- 
- 

 
27,509 
31,019 

 
17,856 
27,941 

 
192,738 
345,710 

 
9.3 
8.1 

 
- 
- 

Drew Speedy (c) 

2015 
 

46,000 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

46,000 
 

- 
 

- 
Duncan Cornish (d) 

2015 
 

9,167 
 

- 
 

- 
 

6,265 
 

15,432 
 

40.6 
 

- 
Ron Wilson (e) 

2015 
2014 

 
- 

180,426 

 
- 
- 

 
- 

20,053 

 
- 
- 

 
- 

200,479 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

Total         2015 
2014 

462,015 
894,008 

- 
- 

41,341 
51,072 

68,487 
187,161 

571,843 
1,132,241 

  

(a) Commenced as Non executive Director on 1 August 2014. 
(b) Resigned as Non executive Director on 19 May 2014. 
(c) Appointed CFO on 1 January 2015. 
(d) Appointed CFO on 30 July 2014 and resigned 1 January 2015. 
(e) Resigned as CFO on 1 May 2014. 

 
7. Equity instruments disclosures 
 
Options 
 
Options may be granted to Directors and Executives as part of their remuneration. The options are not issued 
based on performance criteria, but are issued to the majority of Directors and Executives of the Company to align 
comparative shareholder return and reward for Directors and Executives. 
 
Details of all options on issue over unissued ordinary shares in UIL Energy Ltd at 30 June 2015 to Key Management 
Personnel as remuneration are set out below: 
 

 
Grant / 

Amendment 
Date 

Grant / 
Amendment 

Number 

Exercise 
Price 

Expiry 
Date 

Vesting 

Date 

Number 
Vested @ 

30 June 
2015 

Value per 
option at 

grant / 
amendment 

date # 

Total 
value of 
options 

Exercised 
in current 

year 
Lapsed 

Balance at 
30 June 2015 

   $    $ $    

Directors          

Simon Hickey 1/10/13 2,000,000 0.30 30/06/17 01/10/13 2,000,000 0.019 37,548 - - 2,000,000 

John de Stefani 1/10/13 3,000,000 0.30 30/06/17 01/10/13 3,000,000 0.019 56,322 - - 3,000,000 

Keith Skipper 1/10/13 500,000 0.30 30/06/17 01/10/13 500,000 0.019 9,387 - - 500,000 

 5/03/12 250,000 0.125 21/11/16 31/12/12 - 0.093 23,302 - (250,000) - 

Stephen Bizzell 26/11/14 500,000 0.30 30/06/17 24/02/15 500,000 0.016 8,113 - - 500,000 

Tim Cummings 11/10/13 500,000 0.30 30/06/17 11/10/13 - 0.112 55,963 - (500,000) - 
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Grant / 

Amendment 
Date 

Grant / 
Amendment 

Number 

Exercise 
Price 

Expiry 
Date 

Vesting 

Date 

Number 
Vested @ 

30 June 
2015 

Value per 
option  at 

grant / 
amendment 

date # 

Total 
value of 
options 

Exercised 
in current 

year 
Lapsed 

Balance at 
30 June 2015 

   $    $ $    

Executives            

Vic Palanyk 26/03/13 250,000 0.125 31/10/18 31/10/13 - 0.098 24,565 - (250,000) - 

 20/06/13 2,000,000 0.25 31/12/18 01/07/13 2,000,000 0.086 172,791 - - 2,000,000 

Drew Speedy 31/07/14 200,000 0.24 31/12/18 31/07/14 200,000 0.031 6,265 - - 200,000 

Duncan Cornish 31/07/14 200,000 0.24 31/12/18 31/07/14 200,000 0.031 6,265 - - 200,000 

 
# Value per option at grant date is calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which takes into 
account factors such as the exercise price, the share price at the date of issue and volatility of the underlying share 
price and the time to maturity of the option or performance right (refer Note 21). 
 
Number of unlisted options held by key management personnel: 
 

2015 
Balance 

1 July 2014 

Options 
Granted as 

Compensation 

Options 
Exercised 

Options 
Expired 

Net Change 
Other* 

Balance 

30 June 2015 

Directors       

Simon Hickey  2,000,000 - -  - 842,074 2,842,074 

John de Stefani  3,000,000 - -  - 2,048,401 5,048,401 
Keith Skipper  750,000 - - (250,000) - 500,000 

Stephen Bizzell - 500,000 - - 5,167,900 5,667,900 
Tim Cummings 500,000 - - - (500,000) - 
Executives       
Vic Palanyk 2,250,000 - - (250,000) - 2,000,000 

Drew Speedy - 200,000 - - 110,312 310,312 
Duncan Cornish - 200,000 - - 360,000 560,000 

Total 8,500,000 900,000 -  (500,000) 8,028,687 16,928,687 
 
* Includes options issued on similar terms to other shareholders through participation in the IPO, transactions with 
related parties as detailed on page 19 of this remuneration report, and shares held on appointment/resignation. 
 
Performance Rights 
 
Performance rights may be granted to Executives as part of their remuneration. The performance rights have 
market based performance criteria including Total Shareholder Return along with employment retention criteria. 
 
The plan is designed to align the performance of executives with that of the interests of shareholders and to assist 
in the retention of experienced personnel. 
 
Each performance right that satisfies the vesting condition can be converted to one Ordinary Share for nil 
consideration. 
 
Details of all Performance Rights on issue over unissued ordinary shares in UIL Energy Ltd at 30 June 2015 to Key 
Management Personnel as remuneration are set out below: 
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 Grant Date 
Grant 

Number 
Expiry 
Date 

Vesting 

Date 

Number 
Vested @ 

30 June 
2015 

Value per 
right  at 

grant date # 

Total 
value of 
options 

Exercised 
in current 

year 
Lapsed 

Balance at 
30 June 

2015 

      $ $    

Directors         

Simon Hickey 18/08/14 240,000 18/08/21 18/08/16 - 0.088 21,048 - - 240,000 

John de Stefani 18/08/14 430,000 18/08/21 18/08/16 - 0.088 37,711 - - 430,000 

Executives           

Vic Palanyk 18/08/14 430,000 18/08/21 18/08/16 - 0.088 28,941 - - 430,000 

 
# Value per performance right at grant date is calculated using a Monte Carlo simulation, which takes into account 
factors such as the exercise price, market vesting conditions, the share price at the date of issue and volatility of 
the underlying share price and the time to maturity of the performance right (refer Note 21). 
 
Number of unlisted performance rights held by key management personnel: 
 

2015 
Balance 

1 July 2014 

Rights  
Granted as 

Compensation 

Rights 
Exercised 

Rights   
Expired 

Balance 

30 June 2015 

Directors      
Simon Hickey -  240,000 -  - 240,000 

John de Stefani -  430,000 -  - 430,000 
Keith Skipper - - - - - 

Stephen Bizzell - - - - - 
Executives      
Vic Palanyk - 330,000 - - 330,000 

Drew Speedy - - - - - 
Duncan Cornish - - - - - 
Total - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 

 
Shareholdings 
 
Number of shares held by key management personnel: 
 

2015 
Balance 

1 July 2014 
Granted as 

Compensation 
Options 

Exercised 

Granted on 
conversion of 

notes 

Net Change 
Other* 

Balance 

30 June 2015 

Directors       
Simon Hickey 16,995,580 - -  288,464 1,356,000 18,640,044 

John de Stefani 7,420,000 - - 576,921 4,152,545 12,149,466 
Keith Skipper - - -  - - - 
Stephen Bizzell 3,350,000 - - 4,128,258 1,255,000 8,733,258 
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2015 
Balance 

1 July 2014 
Granted as 

Compensation 
Options 

Exercised 

Granted on 
conversion of 

notes 

Net Change 
Other* 

Balance 

30 June 2015 

Executives       
Vic Palanyk - - - - 250,000 250,000 

Drew Speedy - - - - 305,000 305,000 
Duncan Cornish - - - - - - 
Total 27,765,580 - - 4,993,643 7,318,545 40,077,768 

* Includes shares issued for cash on similar terms to other shareholders, shares acquired on-market, shares issued 
in lieu of fees owed and shares held on appointment/resignation. 
 
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
 
The following related party transactions occurred during the year: 
 
(i)  Consulting fees paid or payable to directors or companies associated with directors as follows. 

• $33,875 to MITA Consulting, a company associated with Mr Simon Hickey (2014:$109,700). MITA provides 
business advisory services to the Company including amongst other things, consulting services related to 
strategy formulation, business development, stakeholder management and communications, joint 
venture relations and capital raising activities; 

 
(ii)   The Company entered into the following agreements with Bizzell Capital Partners (BCP), an entity associated 

with Mr Stephen Bizzell:  
• Corporate advisory agreement in July 2014, in which BCP were paid fees of $108,449 and issued 1,000,000 

share options with an exercise price of $0.24, vest immediately and an expiry date of 31 December 2018. 
BCP provided the following services during the IPO process: strategy development and timetable 
management, structuring advice, co-ordination of the marketing strategy and capital raising activities. 

• Office lease agreement in February 2015 in which UIL Energy subleases office space from BCP, fees of 
$16,000 were payable during the financial period.   

 
(iii)  During July and August 2014 the Company converted the following convertible notes held by Directors and 

their associates: 
• Mr John de Stefani and associated companies held 80,769 convertible notes which converted to 576,921 

fully paid ordinary shares in UIL Energy Ltd 
• Mr Stephen Bizzell and associated companies held 565,956 convertible notes which converted to 

4,128,258 fully paid ordinary shares in UIL Energy Ltd. 
 
(iii)  During 2014 certain Directors provided non-interest bearing short term loans to the company to cover the 

timing of receipts from the underwritten convertible note raise conducted during the previous financial 
period. During the current year the balance of these loans (2014: $78,846) had been repaid to the Directors in 
full. 

 
END OF REMUNERATION REPORT  
 
UNISSUED SHARES UNDER OPTION 
 
As at the date of this report there were 36,312,959 (2014: 20,699,375) unissued ordinary shares of UIL Energy Ltd 
under option as follows: 
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Grant Date Vesting Date Expiry Date Exercise Price Number of Options  

1/10/2013 1/10/2013 30/06/17 $0.30 5,500,000 
26/11/2014 26/02/2015 30/06/17 $0.30 500,000 
11/03/2013 11/03/2013 31/12/2016 $0.24 2,000,000 
20/06/2013 1/07/2013 31/12/2018 $0.25 2,000,000 
31/07/2014 31/07/2014 31/12/2018 $0.24 400,000 
18/08/2014 15/01/2015 31/12/2018 $0.24 10,631,959 
6/11/2014 6/11/2014 31/12/2018 $0.24 4,773,000 
6/11/2014 4/02/2015 31/12/2015 $0.20 10,508,000 

Total 
   

36,312,959 
 
No option holder has any right under the options to participate in any other share issue of the Company or any 
other entity. 
 
During the financial year ended 30 June 2015, no ordinary shares of the Company were issued as a result of the 
exercise of an option over unissued shares (2014: 3,000,000 with an average exercise price of $0.05). 
 
During the financial year ended 30 June 2015, 1,000,000 options over ordinary shares with an average exercise 
price of $0.21 lapsed (2014: 1,650,000 with an average exercise price of $0.26). 
 
DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS 
 
The number of meetings of Directors held during the year and the number of meetings attended by each Director 
was as follows: 
 

 Directors’ Meetings Audit and Risk Management Committee 
Directors: Eligible to Attend Attended Eligible to Attend Attended 

Simon Hickey  11 11 1 1 

John de Stefani 11 11 - - 

Keith Skipper 11 11 1 1 

Stephen Bizzell 9 9 1 1 
 
INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND AUDITOR 
 
Each of the Directors of the Company have entered into a Deed with the Company whereby the Company has  
indemnified and provided certain contractual rights of access to books and records of the Company to those 
Directors. 
 
The Company has insured all of the Directors of UIL Energy Ltd. The contract of insurance prohibits the disclosure 
of the nature of the liabilities covered and amount of the premium paid. The Corporations Act does not require 
disclosure of the information in these circumstances. 
 
The Company has not indemnified or insured its auditor. 
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PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY 
 
No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any 
proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purposes of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company 
for all or any part of those proceedings.  
 
The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
In recognising the need for the highest standards of corporate behaviour and accountability, the Directors of the 
Company support the principles of corporate governance. The Company’s Corporate Governance Statement has 
been released as a separate document and is located on our website. 
 
AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 
 
The Auditor’s Independence Declaration under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on page 22 of 
this financial report and forms part of this Directors’ Report. 
 
 
This report is signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors. 
 
 

 
 
John de Stefani 
Managing Director 
 
Brisbane 
21 September 2015 
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Interests in Petroleum Tenements 
 
UIL Energy Ltd held the following interests in mining and exploration tenements as at 21 September 2015. 
 
Western Australia Tenements 

Tenure Type, Name 
and Number 

Basin Operator % Interest of UIL Notes 

EP 447 Perth UIL Energy Ltd 50% Joint Operation with Eneabba Gas 
Ltd 

EP 488                     
(previously EPA 61) 

Perth UIL Energy Ltd 100% Petroleum Exploration Permit 
successful  28/05/2014 

EP 489            
(previously EPA 63) 

Perth UIL Energy Ltd 100% Petroleum Exploration Permit 
successful  28/05/2014 

EPA 82 Perth UIL Energy Ltd 100% Petroleum Exploration Permit 
successful  14/03/2013 (a) 

EPA 98 Perth UIL Energy Ltd 100% Petroleum Exploration Permit 
successful 10/10/2013 (a) 

EPA 99 Perth UIL Energy Ltd 100% Petroleum Exploration Permit 
successful 10/10/2013 (a) 

 

(a) The application areas are subject to Native Title Claim(s) and accordingly the provisions of the Commonwealth Native 
Title Act must be complied with before the applications can be granted.  
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Shareholder Information 
 

Additional security holder information not shown elsewhere in this report is as follows.  The information is current 
as at 16 September 2015. 

(a) Distribution of equity securities 

The number of holders, by size of holding, in each class of security are: 

 Ordinary Shares 

 No. Holders No. Shares 

1 - 1,000 2 27 

1,001 - 5,000 8 36,487 

5,001 - 10,000 38 364,133 

10,001 - 100,000 164 7,835,506 

100,001 and over 158 99,787,602 

Total 370 108,023,755 

 

 Unlisted Options  Performance Rights 

 No. Holders No. Options No. Holders No. Rights 

1 - 1,000 - - - - 

1,001 - 5,000 52 257,500 - - 

5,001 - 10,000 29 248,750 - - 

10,001 - 100,000 163 5,856,401 - - 

100,001 and over 66 29,950,308 3 1,000,000 

Total 310 36,312,959 3 1,000,000 
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Twenty largest holders 

The names of the twenty largest shareholders: 

i.  Ordinary shares: 

# Registered Name Number of shares 
% of total 

shares 

1 Simon Hickey  15,827,484 14.65% 

2 ENJJ Co Pty Ltd <ENJJ Discretionary Trust> 7,999,798 7.41% 

3 ENJJ Co Pty Ltd <ENJJ Superannuation Fund A/C> 3,911,011 3.62% 

4 Rookharp Investments Pty Ltd 2,950,000 2.73% 

5 Bartinon Securities Pty Ltd 2,500,000 2.31% 

6 Bizzell Nominees Pty Ltd <Bizzell Family A/C> 2,006,830 1.86% 

7 ACN 601 276 886 Pty Ltd 1,785,714 1.65% 

8 Bizzell Capital Partners Pty Ltd 1,675,000 1.55% 

9 Bizzell Nominees Pty Ltd <Bizzell Superannuation Fund A/C> 1,635,714 1.51% 

10 Noel Ross Archer 1,542,980 1.43% 

11 Clavell Holdings Pty Ltd  1,371,560 1.27% 

12 Finn Air Holdings Pty Ltd 1,200,000 1.11% 

13 Mr William David Copland & Mrs Susan Mary Copland <David Copland Super Fund A/C>  1,200,000 1.11% 

14 Kabila Investments Pty Limited 1,125,000 1.04% 

15 Hartnell Nominees Pty Ltd <House Trading A/C> 1,120,000 1.04% 

16 Portia Hickey 1,016,176 0.94% 

17 Noel Ross Archer and Susan Kay Archer <The NRSK Superannuation Fund A/C> 1,000,000 0.93% 

18 BCP Alpha Investments Ltd 1,000,000 0.93% 

19 Carol Hickey 1,000,000 0.93% 

20 Ms Mary Francis Wilde 1,000,000 0.93% 

 Top 20 52,867,267 48.94% 

 Total 108,023,755 100.00% 

 

ii. Substantial Shareholders: 

The Company notes that the following shareholders own substantial shareholdings (>= 5.0%) in UIL Energy Limited: 

Name of Shareholder: Ordinary Shares:  % of total 
shares: 

Simon Hickey and related entities 18,640,044  17.26% 

John de Stefani and related entities 12,472,477  11.55% 

Stephen Bizzell and related entities 8,733,258  8.08% 
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(b) Voting rights 

All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restriction. 

Options and performance rights do not carry voting rights. 

(c) Restricted securities 

The Group currently has 10,631,959 voluntarily restricted securities and 27,195,323 ASX mandatory restricted 
securities. 

(d) On-market buy back 

There is not a current on-market buy-back in place. 

(e) Business objectives 

The Group has used its cash and assets that are readily convertible to cash in a way consistent with its business 
objectives. 
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

     Consolidated Entity 
 Note    2015 2014 
    $ $ 
Revenue 2    54,988 11,076 
       
Employee benefits expense     (226,095) (1,158,572) 
Administration costs     (804,349) (688,345) 
Consultants fees     (515,691) (361,704) 
Depreciation expense     (10,333) (27,570) 
Fair value of financial liabilities 11    (299,619) - 
Exploration impairment     (378,582) (780,674) 
Profit/(loss) before income tax expense 3    (2,179,681) (3,005,789) 
Income tax expense  4    - - 
Net profit/(loss) for the year     (2,179,681) (3,005,789) 

       

Other comprehensive income/(loss)     - - 
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year     (2,179,681) (3,005,789) 
       
       
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to owners of 
UIL Energy Ltd     Cents Cents 

       
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (cents per share) 14    (2.2) (5.7) 
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (cents per share) 14    (2.2) (5.7) 
       
 
 
The above Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
As at 30 June 2015 

 
Note 

 Consolidated Entity 
    2015 2014 
    $ $ 

Current Assets      

Cash and cash equivalents 5    2,553,262 20,694 

Trade and other receivables 6    56,206 162,881 

Other current assets 7    6,081 10,471 

Total Current Assets     2,615,549 194,046 

      

Non-Current Assets      

Property, plant &equipment 8    9,510 18,434 

Other non-current assets 7    - 56,162 

Exploration and evaluation assets 9    3,760,656 3,674,982 

Total Non-Current Assets    3,770,166 3,749,578 

TOTAL ASSETS    6,385,715 3,943,624 

       
Current Liabilities       

Trade and other payables 10    229,127 921,860 

Financial liabilities 11    - 1,176,110 

Total Current Liabilities     229,127 2,097,970 

      

TOTAL LIABILITIES    229,127 2,097,970 

NET ASSETS    6,156,588 1,845,654 

Equity      

Issued capital 12    12,827,340 6,761,248 

Reserves 13(a)    1,643,437 1,218,914 

Retained profits 13(b)    (8,314,189) (6,134,508) 

TOTAL EQUITY    6,156,588 1,845,654 
       
 
The above Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

 

 
Issued Capital 

Retained 
Profits 

Option   
Reserve 

Total 

 $ $ $ $ 

     

At 1 July 2013 3,879,028 (3,128,719) 1,002,185 1,752,494 

     
Total comprehensive income for the 
financial year 

    

Profit/(loss) for the year - (3,005,789) - (3,005,789) 

 - (3,005,789) - (3,005,789) 

     
Transactions with owners in their capacity 
as owners 

 

  

    

Issue of share capital 2,882,220 - - 2,882,220 
Costs associated with issue of share capital - - - - 

Issue of options - - 216,729 216,729 

 2,882,220 - 216,729 3,098,949 

     
At 30 June 2014 6,761,248 (6,134,508) 1,218,914 1,845,654 
     

Total comprehensive income for the 
financial year 

    

Profit/(loss) for the year - (2,179,681) - (2,179,681) 

 - (2,179,681) - (2,179,681) 
     
Transactions with owners in their capacity 
as owners 

 

  

    

Issue of share capital 6,480,998 - - 6,480,998 

Costs associated with issue of share capital (414,906) - - (414,906) 
Issue of options and performance rights - - 424,523 424,523 

 6,066,092 - 424,523 6,490,615 
     
At 30 June 2015 12,827,340 (8,314,189) 1,643,437 6,156,588 
 

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

 

Note 

 Consolidated Entity 

    2015 2014 

    $ $ 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities       

Receipts from operations (including refunds of GST)     57,429 68,777 

Payments to suppliers and employees     (1,414,754) (1,509,283) 

Interest received     49,712 11,420 

Net cash used in operating activities 5(a)    (1,307,613) (1,429,086) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities       

Refund of security deposits     56,162 - 

Payments for property, plant and equipment     (1,409) - 

Payments for exploration and evaluation     (487,064) (624,825) 

Net cash used in investing activities     (432,311) (624,825) 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities       

Proceeds from issue of shares     4,538,200 162,500 

Capital raising expenses     (346,876) - 

Proceeds from issue of convertible notes     160,014 1,066,096 

Proceeds / (repayment) of a short-term loan     (78,846) 78,846 

Net cash provided by financing activities     4,272,492 1,307,442 

Net increase in cash held     2,532,568 (746,469) 

Cash at the beginning of the financial year     20,694 767,163 

Cash at the end of the financial year 5    2,553,262 20,694 

 

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The financial statements of UIL Energy Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2015 were authorised for issue in accordance 
with a resolution of the Directors on 21 September 2015 and covers the consolidated entity consisting of UIL Energy Ltd 
and its subsidiaries as required by the Corporations Act 2001.  
 
The financial statements are presented in the Australian currency.  
 
UIL Energy Ltd is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. 
 
Basis of preparation 
 
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001. UIL Energy Ltd is a for profit entity for the 
purposes of Australian Accounting Standards. 
 
Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in a financial 
report containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions.  Compliance with 
Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the financial statements and notes also comply with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this financial report 
are presented below and have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where 
applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The 
entity is a for-profit entity for the purposes of Australian Accounting Standards. 
 
Going Concern 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the continuity of normal 
business activities and the realisation of assets and discharge of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. The ability 
of the consolidated entity to maintain continuity of normal business activities, to pay its debts as and when they fall 
due and to recover the carrying value of the capitalised exploration and evaluation expenditure, is dependent on the 
ability of the consolidated entity to successfully raise additional capital and the successful exploration and subsequent 
exploitation of areas of interest through sale, farm-out or development. In the absence of these matters being 
successful, there exists a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the consolidated entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern and therefore, it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the 
ordinary course of business. 
 
(a) Basis of Consolidation 
 
Subsidiaries  
 
Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the consolidated entity has control. The consolidated entity controls an 
entity when the consolidated entity is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity 
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully 
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the consolidated entity. They are de-consolidated from 
the date that control ceases.  
 
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entities in the consolidated entity 
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the 
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with 
the policies adopted by the consolidated entity.  
 
The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. A change in ownership 
interest, without the loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction, where the difference between the 
consideration transferred and the book value of the share of the non-controlling interest acquired is recognised directly 
in equity attributable to the parent.  
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
(a) Basis of Consolidation (continued) 
 
Non-controlling interest in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income, statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the 
consolidated entity. Losses incurred by the consolidated entity are attributed to the non-controlling interest in full, 
even if that results in a deficit balance.  
 
Where the consolidated entity loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets including goodwill, liabilities 
and non-controlling interest in the subsidiary together with any cumulative translation differences recognised in equity. 
The consolidated entity recognises the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any investment 
retained together with any gain or loss in profit or loss. 
 
(b) Revenue Recognition 
 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of 
returns, trade allowances and duties and taxes paid. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before 
revenue is recognised: 
 
Interest 
Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method.  
 
(c) Income Tax 
 
The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the national 
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary 
differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, and to 
unused tax losses. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, between carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases, at the tax rates expected to apply when the 
assets are recovered or liabilities settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively enacted for each 
jurisdiction. Exceptions are made for certain temporary differences arising on initial recognition of an asset or a liability 
if they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not affect 
either accounting profit or taxable profit. 
 
Deferred tax assets are only recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses if it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax 
bases of investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures where the parent entity is able to control 
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future. 
 
Current and deferred tax balances relating to amounts recognised directly in other comprehensive income are also 
recognised directly in other comprehensive income. 
 
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists and it is intended that net 
settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and liability will occur. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists, the deferred tax assets and liabilities 
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable 
entities where it is intended that net settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and 
liability will occur in future periods in which significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be 
recovered or settled. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
(d) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 
 
At the end of each reporting period the consolidated entity assesses whether there is any indication that individual 
non-financial assets are impaired. Where impairment indicators exist, a recoverable amount is determined and 
impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss where the asset's carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
 
Where it is not possible to estimate recoverable amount for an individual non-financial asset, the consolidated entity 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.  
 
(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and at bank, 
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short term, highly liquid investments with maturities of three 
months or less, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value and bank overdrafts. 
 
(f) Inventories 
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all direct materials, direct labour 
and an appropriate portion of variable and fixed overheads. Fixed overheads are allocated on the basis of normal 
operating capacity. Costs are assigned to inventories using the weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. 
 
(g) Financial Instruments 
 
Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions to 
the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the company commits itself to either the 
purchase or sale of the asset (ie. trade date accounting is adopted).  
 
Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where the instrument is 
classified ‘at fair value through profit or loss’, in which case transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss 
immediately.  
 
Classification and subsequent measurement 
Financial instruments are subsequently measured at either of fair value, amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method, or cost. Fair value represents the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled, between 
knowledgeable, willing parties. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine fair value. In 
other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted. 
 
Amortised cost is calculated as:  

a. the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition;  
b. less principal repayments; 
c. plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference, if any, between the amount initially recognised 

and the maturity amount calculated using the effective interest method; and 
d. less any reduction for impairment. 

 
The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant period and is 
equivalent to the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including fees, transaction 
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life (or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the 
contractual term) of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. 
Revisions to expected future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying value with a consequential 
recognition of an income or expense in profit or loss. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
(g) Financial Instruments (continued) 
 
The consolidated entity does not designate any interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint venture entities as being 
subject to the requirements of accounting standards specifically applicable to financial instruments.  Classification and 
subsequent measurement categories are as follows: 
 

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets are classified at ‘fair value through profit or loss’ when they are either held for trading for the 
purpose of short-term profit taking, derivatives not held for hedging purposes, or when they are designated 
as such to avoid an accounting mismatch or to enable performance evaluation where a group of financial 
assets is managed by key management personnel on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk 
management or investment strategy. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in 
carrying value being included in profit or loss.  
 

    (ii) Loans and receivables  
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market and are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

 
Loans and receivables are included in current assets, except for those which are not expected to mature 
within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.  

 
(iii) Held-to-maturity investments  

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets that have fixed maturities and fixed or 
determinable payments, and it is the consolidated entity’s intention to hold these investments to maturity. 
They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

 
Held-to-maturity investments are included in non-current assets, except for those which are expected to 
mature within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.  

 
If during the period the consolidated entity sold or reclassified more than an insignificant amount of the held-
to-maturity investments before maturity, the entire held-to-maturity investments category would be tainted 
and reclassified as available-for-sale. 

 
(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets 

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either not suitable to be 
classified into other categories of financial assets due to their nature, or they are designated as such by 
management. They comprise investments in the equity of other entities where there is neither a fixed 
maturity nor fixed or determinable payments. 

 
Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value and are included in non-current assets, except 
for those which are expected to mature within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.  

 
(v) Financial liabilities 

Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost. 

 
Fair value 
Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques are applied to 
determine the fair value for all other financial assets and liabilities, including recent arm’s length transactions, 
reference to similar instruments and option pricing models. 
 
Impairment 
At each reporting date, the consolidated entity assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument 
has been impaired. In the case of available-for-sale financial instruments, a significant or prolonged decline in the value 
of the instrument is considered to determine whether an impairment has arisen. Impairment losses are recognised in 
profit or loss. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
(g) Financial Instruments (continued) 
 
Financial guarantees 
Where material, financial guarantees issued, which require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the 
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due, are recognised as a financial 
liability at fair value on initial recognition.  
 
The guarantee is subsequently measured at the higher of the best estimate of the obligation and the amount initially 
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation in accordance with AASB 118: Revenue. Where the entity 
gives guarantees in exchange for a fee, revenue is recognised under AASB 118. 
 
The fair value of financial guarantee contracts has been assessed using a probability weighted discounted cash flow 
approach. The probability has been based on: 

 the likelihood of the guaranteed party defaulting in a year period; 
 the proportion of the exposure that is not expected to be recovered due to the guaranteed party defaulting; 

and 
 the maximum loss exposed if the guaranteed party were to default. 

 
Derecognition 
Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expires or the asset is 
transferred to another party whereby the entity no longer has any significant continuing involvement in the risks and 
benefits associated with the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised where the related obligations are either 
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability extinguished or 
transferred to another party and the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or 
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss. 
 
(h) Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Property, plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less, where applicable, depreciation and impairment 
losses. 
 
The cost of fixed assets constructed within the consolidated entity includes the cost of materials, direct labour, 
borrowing costs and an appropriate portion of fixed and variable costs. 
 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the consolidated entity and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably.  All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss during 
the financial period in which they are incurred. 
 
Depreciation 
The depreciable amount of all fixed assets is depreciated over their useful life to the consolidated entity commencing 
from the time the asset is held ready for use.  
 
The Company only has one asset class being computers and office equipment which uses both the straight line and 
diminishing value depreciation methods with useful lives of between two (50%) and five years (20%).  
 
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting 
period. 
 
Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount.  The gains and losses 
are included in the profit or loss. 
 
Costs of site restoration are provided over the life of the asset from when construction is completed and are included in 
the costs of that stage.  Site restoration costs include the dismantling and removal of assets, equipment and building 
structure, waste removal, and rehabilitation of the site in accordance with clauses of environmental authority. Future 
estimated costs are recognised at the present value of those future costs. The discount rate used to determine the 
present value reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the liability. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
(i) Exploration and development expenditure 
 
Exploration, evaluation and development expenditure incurred is accumulated in respect of each identifiable area of 
interest.  Such expenditures comprise net direct costs and an appropriate portion of related overhead expenditure but 
do not include overheads or administration expenditure not having a specific nexus with a particular area of interest.  
These costs are only carried forward to the extent that they are expected to be recouped through the successful 
development of the area or where activities in the area have not yet reached a stage which permits reasonable 
assessment of the existence of economically recoverable reserves and active or significant operations in relation to the 
area are continuing. 
 
A regular review has been undertaken on each area of interest to determine the appropriateness of continuing to carry 
forward costs in relation to that area of interest.  Accumulated costs in relation to an abandoned area are written off in 
full against profit in the year in which the decision to abandon the area is made. 
 
When production commences, the accumulated costs for the relevant area of interest are amortised over the life of the 
area according to the rate of depletion of the economically recoverable reserves. 
 
Costs of site restoration are provided over the life of the facility from when exploration commences and are included in 
the costs of that stage.  Site restoration costs include the dismantling and removal of mining plant, equipment and 
building structure, waste removal, and rehabilitation of the site in accordance with clauses of mining permits. Future 
estimated costs are recognised at the present value of those future costs. The discount rate used to determine the 
present value reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the liability. 
 
(j) Interests in joint arrangements 
 
Under AASB 11 Joint Arrangements, investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint 
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal 
structure of the joint arrangements. The group has joint operations at this time. 
 
Joint operations 
 
The consolidated entity recognises its direct right to the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of joint operations 
and its share of any jointly held or incurred assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. These have been incorporated in 
the financial statements under the appropriate headings. Details of the consolidated entity’s interests are shown in 
Note 17. 
 
(k) Leases 
 
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are classified as 
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the 
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 
 
(l) Trade and Other Payables 
 
Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the consolidated entity prior to the 
year end and which are unpaid. These amounts are unsecured and have 30-60 day payment terms. 
 
(m) Employee Benefits 
 
Wages and Salaries, Annual Leave and Sick Leave 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected 
to be settled within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are recognised in respect of employees' services 
rendered up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities 
are settled. Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when leave is taken and measured at the actual 
rates paid or payable. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
(n) Provisions 
 
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure (as adjusted for risk) 
required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money. The increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognised as interest expense. 
 
The consolidated entity is required to restore land and the surrounding environment to its original condition at the end 
of the respective lease terms. For close down restoration and for environmental clean up costs, provision is made in the 
accounting period when the related disturbance occurs, based on the net present value of estimated future costs. 
 
The amortisation or “unwinding” of the discount applied in establishing the net present value of provisions is charged 
to profit or loss in each accounting period. 
 
(o) Issued Capital 
 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.  
 
Costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown as a deduction from the equity proceeds, net 
of any income tax benefit.  
 
(p) Share-Based Payments 
 
The consolidated entity provides benefits to certain Directors, employees and consultants in the form of share-based 
payment transactions, whereby employees render services in exchange for shares, options over shares or performance 
rights ("equity-settled transactions").  
 
The fair value of options and performance rights granted to Directors, employees and consultants are recognised as an 
employee benefit expense with a corresponding increase in equity (option reserve). The fair value is measured at grant 
date and recognised over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the 
options/performance rights. Fair value is determined by using a Black-Scholes option pricing model or a Monte Carlo 
simulation. In determining fair value, no account is taken of any performance conditions other than those related to the 
share price of UIL Energy Ltd ("market conditions"). The cumulative expense recognised between grant date and 
vesting date is adjusted to reflect the directors’ best estimate of the number of options/performance rights that will 
ultimately vest because of internal conditions of the options/performance rights, such as the employees having to 
remain with the consolidated entity until vesting date, or such that employees are required to meet internal targets. No 
expense is recognised for options/performance rights that do not ultimately vest because internal conditions were not 
met. An expense is still recognised for options/performance rights that do not ultimately vest because a market 
condition was not met. 
 
Where the terms of options/performance rights are modified, the expense continues to be recognised from grant date 
to vesting date as if the terms had never been changed. In addition, at the date of the modification, a further expense is 
recognised for any increase in fair value of the transaction as a result of the change. 
 
Where options/performance rights are cancelled, they are treated as if vesting occurred on cancellation and any 
unrecognised expenses are taken immediately to profit or loss. However, if new options/performance rights are 
substituted for the cancelled options/performance rights and designated as a replacement on grant date, the combined 
impact of the cancellation and replacement options/performance rights are treated as if they were a modification. 
 
(q) Earnings per Share 
 
Basic earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to members of UIL Energy Ltd by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary 
shares during the year.  
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
(q) Earnings per Share (continued) 
 
Diluted earnings per share 
Earnings used to calculate diluted earnings per share are calculated by adjusting the amount used in determining basic 
earnings per share by the after-tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares. 
The weighted average number of shares used is adjusted for the weighted average number of shares assumed to have 
been issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares. 
 
(r) GST 
 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except where GST incurred on a purchase of goods and 
services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item. 
 
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or 
payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position. 
 
Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising 
from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority, are classified as 
operating cash flows. Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or 
payable to, the taxation authority. 
 
(s) Fair Value Measurement  
 
When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure purposes, the 
fair value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaction will take place 
either: in the principle market; or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market. 
 
Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, 
assuming they act in their economic best interest. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement is based on its 
highest and best use. Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, are used, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 
 
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified, into three levels, using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. Classifications are reviewed each reporting date and 
transfers between levels are determined based on a reassessment of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement. 
 
For recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, external valuers may be used when internal expertise is 
either not available or when the valuation is deemed to be significant. External valuers are selected based on market 
knowledge and reputation. Where there is a significant change in fair value of an asset or liability from one period to 
another, an analysis is undertaken, which includes a verification of the major inputs applied in the latest valuation and a 
comparison, where applicable, with external sources of data. 
 
(t) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations 
  
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as follows: 
 
The Company has adopted the following new and amended Australian Accounting Standards and AASB Interpretations 
as of 1 July 2014: 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
(t) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued) 
 

Reference Title 
Application date 

of standard 
Application date 
for the Company 

AASB 2012-3  Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities  

1 January 2014  1 July 2014  

AASB 2013-3  Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount 
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets  

1 January 2014  1 July 2014  

AASB 2013-4  Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge 
Accounting  

1 January 2014  1 July 2014  

AASB 2013-5  Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Investment Entities  

1 January 2014  1 July 2014  

AASB 1031  Materiality  1 January 2014  1 July 2014  

AASB 2013-9  Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial 
Instruments  

1 January 2014  1 July 2014  

AASB 2014-1  Part A -Annual Improvements 2010–2012 Cycle  1 July 2014  1 July 2014  

AASB 2014-1  Part A -Annual Improvements 2011–2013 Cycle  1 July 2014  1 July 2014  

AASB 2014-
Part B  

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - 
Part B Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions  

1 July 2014  1 July 2014  

AASB 1053  Transition to and between Tiers, and related Tier 2 
Disclosure Requirements  

1 July 2014  1 July 2014  

 
The adoption of the above standards and interpretations did not have any material impact on the current or any prior 
period and is not likely to materially affect future periods.   
  
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have been recently issued or amended but are not yet 
effective have not been adopted by the Company for the annual reporting period ending 30 June 2015.  None of these 
is expected to have a significant effect on the financial statements. 
 
The Company anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Company’s accounting policies 
for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.  Information of new standards, 
amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the Company’s financial statements is provided 
below. 
 

Reference Title 
Application date 

of standard 
Application date 
for the Company 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 1 July 2018  

AASB 15 Revenue from contracts 1 January 2017 1 July 2017  
 
(u) Accounting Estimates and Judgments 
 
Critical accounting estimates and judgements 
Details of critical accounting estimates and judgements about the future made by management at the end of the 
reporting period are set out below: 
 

(i) Key estimates – share-based payments 
The consolidated entity uses estimates to determine the fair value of equity instruments issued to directors, 
executives, employees and consultants.  Further detail of estimates used in determining the value of share-
based payments is included in Note 21.  
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
(u) Accounting Estimates and Judgments (continued) 
 

(ii) Key estimates – impairment 
The consolidated entity assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the 
consolidated entity that may lead to impairment of assets.  Where an impairment trigger exists, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing 
recoverable amounts incorporate a number of key estimates.  No assets are considered impaired at year 
end. 

(iii) Key judgements – exploration & evaluation expenditure 
The consolidated entity performs regular reviews on each area of interest to determine the appropriateness 
of continuing to carry forward costs in relation to that area of interest.  While there are certain areas of 
interest from which no reserves have been extracted, the directors are of the continued belief that such 
expenditure should not be written off since feasibility studies in such areas have not yet concluded.  Such 
capitalised expenditure is carried at the end of the reporting period at $3,760,656. 
 

    Consolidated Entity 
      2015 2014 
      $ $ 
        

NOTE 2 REVENUE        

        

Revenue        

- interest from other persons      54,988 11,076 

Total revenue      54,988 11,076 

        
NOTE 3     LOSS FOR THE PERIOD        
        
Loss before tax includes the following: 
 

   

Superannuation contributions  (62,576) (64,966) 
Minimum lease rentals  (141,939) (126,346) 
Share-based payments  (356,492) (216,728) 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  (10,333) (27,750) 
 
NOTE 4 INCOME TAX EXPENSE        

    (a) The components of income tax expense comprise:    

Current tax      466,577 831,501 
Deferred tax      (466,577) (831,501) 

      - - 
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NOTE 4 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 

    Consolidated Entity 
      2015 2014 
      $ $ 

(b) The prima facie income tax on the profit / (loss) is reconciled to the 
income tax expense as follows: 

 

Prima facie tax payable/(benefit) on 
profit/(loss) before income tax at 30% 

    
(653,905) (901,736) 

Add tax effect of:        

Share based payments - options      106,948 65,019 
Fair value of Financial Liabilities    89,886 - 

Tax losses incurred, not recognised    482,790 836,718 

Capital Raising Cost deduction    (20,813) - 

Deferred tax through equity    - - 

Utilisation of tax losses    - - 

Other    (4,906) - 

Income tax expense      - - 
        

(c) Recognised deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities    

Deferred tax liabilities         

Exploration and evaluation expenditure    1,128,197 1,102,495 
Other assessable temporary differences    1,583 - 

Total deferred tax liabilities       1,129,780 1,102,495 
Deferred tax assets        

Unused tax losses      898,759 914,555 
Deductible temporary differences    231,020 187,940 

Total deferred tax assets      1,129,780 1,102,495 
Net deferred tax liabilities      - - 
 

(d) Movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities     
  Opening 

Balance 
 Charged to 

income 
 Charged 

to equity 
 Closing 

balance 

  1 July 2014      30 June 2015 
  $  $  $  $ 

Deferred tax liabilities         

Exploration and evaluation expenditure  1,102,495  25,702  -  1,128,197 

Other assessable temporary differences  -  1,583  -  1,583 

Balance at 30 June 2012  1,102,495  27,285  -  1,129,780 
         

Deferred tax assets         

Unused tax losses  914,555  (15,796)  -  898,759 

Deductible temporary differences  187,940  43,080  -  231,020 

Balance at 30 June 2012  1,102,495  27,285  -  1,129,780 
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NOTE 4 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 

  Consolidated Entity 
  2015  2014 
  $  $ 

(e) Unrecognised deferred tax assets     

Unused tax losses      6,758,881  5,167,366 

Tax effect of unused tax losses      2,027,664  1,550,210 

         

There is no expiry date on the future deductibility of unused tax losses. 
 

There are no franking credits available to shareholders of the Company. 
 

In order to recoup carried forward losses in future periods, either the Continuity of Ownership Test (COT) or Same 
Business Test must be passed.  The majority of losses are carried forward at 30 June 2015 under SBT. 
 
    Consolidated Entity 
      2015 2014 
      $ $ 

 
NOTE 5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

    
 

 

        
Cash on hand and at bank      347,100 20,694 

Cash on deposit      2,206,162 - 

      2,553,262 20,694 

        
Cash at bank bear floating and fixed interest rates between 0% and 1.50% (2014: 0% and 2.35%). The effective 
interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 2.94% (2014: 0%). 
  

(a) Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with profit/(loss) after income tax  

        

Profit/(loss) after income tax      (2,179,681) (3,005,789) 
Non-cash flows in profit after income tax:     
Depreciation      10,333 27,570 

Share options expensed      356,492 216,728 
Exploration impairment 
 

     378,582 780,674 
Fair value of financial liabilities      299,619 - 

Issue of shares in lieu of accrued salaries and fees   467,069 224,400 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of the 
effects of purchase and disposal of subsidiaries: 

  
 

 

- (Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables    (33,948) 31,626 

- Increase/(Decrease) in trade  and other payables     (606,079) 295,705 

Cash flow from operations      (1,307,613) (1,429,086) 
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NOTE 5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 

(b) Non-cash investing and financing activities  
  
During July 2014, the Company issued 3,016,552 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.125 to Directors and employees. 
The shares were issued in lieu of accrued salary and fees.  
 During August 2014, the Company issued 450,000 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.20 to a Director. The shares were 
issued following shareholder approval at the 2014 AGM and were in lieu of accrued salary.  
 During July and August 2014, the Company issued 3,816,000 and 4,993,643 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.125 
and $0.14 respectively, on the conversion of 1,176,110 convertible notes. 

On 1 December 2013, the Company issued 524,000 and 224,000 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.30 to the 
Chairman and Managing Director respectively. The shares were issued following shareholder approval at the 2013 
AGM and were in lieu of accrued salary and fees.  
 
 
During May 2014, the Company issued 19,962,560 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.125 upon the conversion of 
2,495,320 convertible notes.  

        
    Consolidated Entity 
      2015 2014 
      $ $ 

NOTE 6 TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES 
     

      

Current      

Goods and Services Tax receivable    35,929 2,867 

Receivables from Joint Operations    15,000 - 

Interest receivable    5,277 - 

Convertible Notes – subscription monies receivable    - 160,014 

    56,206 162,881 
 

NOTE 7 OTHER ASSETS 
     

      

Current      

Prepayments     6,081 10,471 

    6,081 10,471 

      
Non-Current      

Security deposit    - 56,162 

    - 56,162 

NOTE 8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT      

      Computers and office equipment      

At cost    65,230 63,821 

Accumulated depreciation    (55,720) (45,387) 

    9,510 18,434 
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NOTE 8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 
 
       Consolidated Entity 
       2015 2014 
       $ $ 

Movements in carrying amounts       
     

Computers and office equipment:    
  

Balance at the beginning of the year  18,434 46,004 

Additions    1,409 - 

Disposals    - - 

Depreciation expense    (10,333) (27,570) 

    9,510 18,434 
     

NOTE 9 EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS     

Non-Current 
        

Exploration and evaluation assets       

- exploration and evaluation(a) 
 

      3,760,656 3,674,982 

(a) During September 2015 the Company withdrew the application for EPA97. The carrying amount of EPA97 at 30 
June 2015 was $25,162 and will be impaired during the 30 June 2016 financial year. 

Recoverability of the carrying amount of exploration assets is dependent on the successful development and 
commercial exploitation of oil and/or gas, or alternatively, sale of the respective areas of interest. 
         
Movements in carrying amounts 

        

Balance at the beginning of the year     3,674,982 3,847,314 

Additions       464,256 608,342 

Exploration impairment       (378,582) (780,674) 

Carrying amount at the end of the year     3,760,656 3,674,982 
         

NOTE 10 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES       

Current         

Trade payables       26,559 43,104 

Sundry payables and accruals 
 

      128,519 729,563 

Employee benefits       74,049 70,347 

Short - term loans(a)       - 78,846 

       229,127 921,860 
(a) Short – term loans were provided by certain Directors of the Company to provide funding during the convertible 

note raising that was undertaken during 2014. The loans were repaid in August 2014. 
 
NOTE 11 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES     

Current       

Balance at beginning of year(a)     1,176,110 3,021,430 
Issue of convertible notes(a)     - 650,000 
Movement in Fair Value(d)     299,619 - 

Conversion to shares (b)(c)(d)     (1,475,729) (2,495,320) 

Balance at end of year 

 

 

 

 

 

      - 1,176,110 
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NOTE 11 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued) 

(a) During the 2014 financial year the Company issued 650,000 unsecured Convertible Notes and 3,021,430 
unsecured Convertible Notes in the 2013 financial year with the following general terms: 
i. Term: Varying maturity dates between 31 May 2014 and 22 August 2014. 
ii. The face value of the Convertible Note is A$1.00 per Note. 
iii. Coupon rate: There is no coupon rate. 
iv. Conversion price: if UIL Energy issues a pathfinder prospectus the conversion price will be calculated as a 30% 

discount to the proposed issue price per share in UIL Energy to be issued to the public. If no pathfinder 
prospectus is issued prior to the maturity date each note will convert into such number of shares as 
determined by the greater of the following: $0.125 or 70% of the share price as determined by an 
independent valuation. 

v. Conversion rights: Notes are not convertible at the election of the Noteholder. If the UIL Board resolve to 
approve a pathfinder version of a prospectus then the Board will elect to convert the Notes. If the Notes 
remain unconverted at the maturity date they will automatically convert at the conversion price. 

vi. Issue of shares: On conversion of a Note the shares will be allotted by UIL Energy as the Noteholder directs 
within two business days of the date of the notes are to be converted. 

(b) During May 2014, 2,495,320 convertible notes issued during the 2013 financial year matured and converted at 
$0.125 into 19,962,560 new ordinary fully paid shares.  

(c) During July and August 2014, 477,000 convertible notes issued during the previous financial year matured and 
converted at $0.125 into 3,816,000 new ordinary fully paid shares. 

(d) During August 2014, 624,205 convertible notes issued during the previous financial year matured upon the 
signing of a pathfinder prospectus and converted at $0.14 into 4,993,643 new ordinary fully paid shares. These 
convertible notes were fair valued at the time of conversion and an expense of $299,619 was realised. 

 

       Consolidated Entity 
       2015 2014 
       $ $ 
         

NOTE 12 ISSUED CAPITAL         

108,023,755 Fully paid ordinary shares (2014: 72,051,560)   13,496,368  7,015,370 

Costs associated with issue of share capital(i)   (669,028)  (254,122) 

       12,827,340  6,761,248 

(i) Costs associated with the issue of share capital include the issue of options over shares in the Company, further 
detail is provided in Note 21(b). 

 
  2015 2014 

 
 Number of 

shares $ 
Number of 

shares $ 
(a) Movements in ordinary fully paid 
shares on issue 

  
  

Balance at the beginning of the period  72,051,560 6,761,248 48,091,000 3,879,028 
Issue of shares during the period:      

Equity Raising(3,8,9,11,12)  23,696,000 4,538,200 250,000 12,500 
Exercise of unlisted options(10)  - - 3,000,000 150,000 
In lieu of salary and fees(1,4,7)  3,466,552 467,069 748,000 224,400 

Conversion of convertible notes(2,5,6,13) 8,809,643 1,475,729 19,962,560 2,495,320 
Transaction costs on shares issued  - (414,906) - - 

Balance at the end of the period  108,023,755 12,827,340 72,051,560 6,761,248 
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NOTE 12 ISSUED CAPITAL (continued) 

During the year ended 30 June 2015 

(1) On 1 July 2014, 391,552 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.125 (total consideration $48,944) were issued to an 
employee in lieu of accrued salary and wages.   

(2) On 26 July 2014, 800,000 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.125 (total consideration $100,000) were issued 
upon the conversion of 100,000 convertible notes. 

(3) On 29 July 2014, 2,680,000 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.125 (total consideration $335,000) were issued 
pursuant to a share placement to sophisticated investors. 

(4) On 31 July 2014, 2,625,000 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.125 (total consideration $328,125) were issued 
to employees and consultants in lieu of accrued salary and wages. 

(5) On 1 August 2014, 3,016,000 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.125 (total consideration $377,000) were issued 
upon the conversion of 377,000 convertible notes. 

(6) On 18 August 2014, 4,993,643 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.20 (total consideration $998,729) were issued 
upon the conversion of 699,110 convertible notes. 

(7) On 18 August 2014, 450,000 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.20 (total consideration $90,000) were issued 
following shareholder approval to the Managing Director in lieu of accrued salary and wages. 

(8) On 6 November 2014, 21,016,000 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.20 (total consideration $4,203,200) were 
issued pursuant to a  prospectus for the Initial Public Offering of UIL Energy Ltd. 

During the year ended 30 June 2014 

(9) On 31 July 2013, 250,000 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.05 (total consideration $12,500) were issued 
pursuant to a share placement to a sophisticated investor and other exempt persons. 

(10) On 14 November 2013, 1,000,000 options with an exercise price of $0.05 and an expiry of 30 June 2017, were 
exercised raising $50,000. In addition, 2,000,000 options with an exercise price of $0.05 and an expiry of 31 
December 2015, were exercised raising $100,000. 

(11) On 22 November 2013, 224,000 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.30 (total consideration $67,200) were issued 
following shareholder approval to John de Stefani in lieu of accrued salary. 

(12) On 22 November 2013, 524,000 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.30 (total consideration $157,200) were 
issued following shareholder approval to Simon Hickey in lieu of accrued fees. 

(13) During May 2014, 19,962,560 new ordinary shares paid up to $0.125 (total consideration $2,495,320) were 
issued upon the conversion of 2,495,320 convertible notes. See Note 11 for further details. 

 
(b) Options 

As at the reporting date there were 36,312,959 unissued ordinary shares of UIL Energy Ltd under option as follows: 
 
 
 
 
Grant / Amend Date  Vesting Date Expiry Date Exercise Price Number of Options  

1/10/2013 1/10/2013 30/06/17 $0.30 5,500,000 
26/11/2014 26/02/2015 30/06/17 $0.30 500,000 
11/03/2013 11/03/2013 31/12/2016 $0.24 2,000,000 
20/06/2013 1/07/2013 31/12/2018 $0.25 2,000,000 
31/07/2014 31/07/2014 31/12/2018 $0.24 400,000 
18/08/2014 15/01/2015 31/12/2018 $0.24 10,631,959 
6/11/2014 6/11/2014 31/12/2018 $0.24 4,773,000 
6/11/2014 4/02/2015 31/12/2015 $0.20 10,508,000 

Total 
   

36,312,959 
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NOTE 12 ISSUED CAPITAL (continued) 

For information relating to the UIL Energy Ltd employee option plan and options issued for other goods and services, 
including details of options issued, exercised and lapsed during the financial year and the options outstanding at year-
end refer to Note 21. 
        

(c) Capital Risk Management 

Management controls the capital of the consolidated entity in order to provide capital growth to shareholders and 
ensure the consolidated entity can fund its operations and continue as a going concern. 

The consolidated entity’s capital comprises equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. 

There are no externally imposed capital requirements. 

Management effectively manages the consolidated entity’s capital by assessing the consolidated entity’s financial risks 
and adjusting its capital structure in response to changes in these risks and the market. These responses include the 
management of share issues. 
 

       Consolidated Entity 
       2015 2014 
       $ $ 
         

NOTE 13(a)   RESERVES         

Option Reserve       1,643,437 1,218,914 

       1,643,437 1,218,914 

The option reserve records the value of options issued as an expense relating to director and employee share options 
and options issued for goods and services. 
        

NOTE 13(b)   RETAINED PROFITS       

Retained profits / (accumulated losses) attributable to members of 
UIL Energy Ltd at beginning of the financial year 

 
 (6,134,508) (3,128,719) 

Profits / (losses) after income tax     (2,179,681) (3,005,789) 

Retained profits attributable to members of UIL Energy Ltd at the 
end of the financial year 

 
 (8,314,189) (6,134,508) 

       

NOTE 14 EARNINGS PER SHARE     

Earnings       

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of UIL Energy Ltd used 
to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share 

 
(2,179,681) 

 
(3,005,789) 

       
     2015 2014 
     Number Number 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the 
denominator in calculating basic earnings per share 

 
99,181,368 52,278,376 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the 
denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share 

 
99,181,368 52,278,376 

Options could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future but were not included in the calculation of 
dilutive earnings per share because they were anti-dilutive for both 2015 and 2014.  
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NOTE 15 DIVIDENDS AND FRANKING CREDITS      

There were no dividends paid or recommended during the financial year (2014: nil).  

There were no franking credits available to the shareholders of the Company.  

 
 
  Country of Incorporation 

 
Percentage Owned (%)* 

   2015 2014 

NOTE 16 CONTROLLED ENTITIES 
 

 
 

Parent Entity: 
UIL Energy Ltd 

 
Australia 

 
 

Subsidiaries of UIL Energy Ltd:     

Cape Range Energy Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 

PB Energy No 1 Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
UIL Canning Basin Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 

* percentage of voting power is in proportion of ownership  

 

NOTE 17 INTERESTS IN JOINT OPERATIONS 

Joint Operation Joint Operation Partner 
Percentage Owned (%) 

2015 2014 
EP447 Joint Operation Eneabba Gas Limited 50% 50% 
 
In order for the joint operations to maintain their interests in the exploration tenements in which they are involved, 
the joint operations are required to meet certain conditions imposed by the various statutory authorities granting the 
exploration permits or that are imposed by the joint operating agreements entered into by the consolidated entity. 
These conditions include minimum expenditure commitments. The timing and amount of minimum exploration 
expenditure obligations of the consolidated entity may vary significantly from the forecast based on the results of the 
work performed, which will determine the prospectivity of the relevant area of interest. The consolidated entity's 
minimum expenditure obligations from its interests in joint ventures, which are not provided for in the financial 
statements are as follows: 
  
       Consolidated Entity 
       2015 2014 
       $ $ 
Minimum expenditure requirements         

Not later than 12 months       - - 

Between 12 months and 5 years      4,114,500 5,625,000 

       4,114,500 5,625,000 

The principal place of business for the EP 447 Joint Operation is UIL Energy’s principal place of business. 
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     Parent Entity 
     2015 2014 
     $ $ 
 
NOTE 18 PARENT ENTITY INFORMATION 
 

      

(a) Summary financial information 
  

 
 

The individual financial report for the parent entity shows 
the following aggregate amounts: 
 

  
 

 

Statement of Financial Position       

Current Assets     2,621,223 199,000 

Total Assets     6,391,392 3,948,581 
Current Liabilities     228,127 2,096,970 
Total Liabilities     228,127 2,096,970 

Shareholders’ equity       

Issued Capital      12,827,340 6,761,247 

Reserves     1,643,437 1,218,914 
Accumulated Losses     (8,307,512) (6,128,551) 

     6,163,265 1,851,610 

       
Statement of Comprehensive Income       
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the parent   (2,178,961) (3,005,086) 

Total comprehensive loss attributable to owners of 
the parent 

    
(2,178,961) (3,005,086) 

       

(b) Guarantees       

No guarantees have been entered into by the parent entity in relation to debts of its subsidiaries. 
       

(c) Contractual Commitments        

There were no contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment entered into by the 
parent entity at 30 June 2015 (2014: none). 

(d) Contingent Liabilities        

See Note 20.  
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     Consolidated Entity 
     2015 2014 
     $ $ 
       

NOTE 19 COMMITMENTS       

(a) Office Lease       

The consolidated entity terminated the office and car parking lease during the current financial year. 

The commitments to be undertaken are as follows:   

Payable:       

- not later than 12 months     - 162,060 

- between 12 months and 5 years     - 133,713 

- greater than 5 years     - - 

     - 295,773 

       

(b) Future Exploration       

The consolidated entity has certain obligations to expend minimum amounts on exploration in tenement areas.  These 
obligations may be varied from time to time and are expected to be fulfilled in the normal course of operations of the 
consolidated entity. 
The commitments to be undertaken are as follows(a):  

Payable:       

- not later than 12 months     1,732,000 1,550,000 

- between 12 months and 5 years     65,764,500 91,400,000 

- greater than 5 years     30,300,000 37,800,000 

     97,796,500 130,750,000 
(a) Total exploration commitments exclude $24.6m of expenditure in relation to EPA 97 which was relinquished by the 

Company following the end of the reporting period. 

 

To keep tenements in good standing, work programs should meet certain minimum expenditure requirements. If the 
minimum expenditure requirements are not met, the consolidated entity has the option to negotiate new terms or 
relinquish the tenements. The consolidated entity also has the ability to meet expenditure requirements by joint 
venture or farm-out agreements. 
 
 (c) Joint Operations  

Commitments arising from interest in joint operations are included in future exploration.  

 

NOTE 20 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & ASSETS 

 

The directors are not aware of any significant contingent liabilities or contingent assets at the date of this report. 
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NOTE 21 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS 

 
(a) Share-based payments to Directors, employees and consultants 

Share Options 

The following share options were issued to Directors, employees and consultants during the financial year: 

• 500,000 unlisted options exercisable at $0.30, expiring on or before 30 June 2017 (vesting 26 February 2015) 
• 400,000 unlisted options exercisable at $0.24, expiring on or before 31 December 2018 (vesting 31 July 2014) 

All of these options were issued by UIL Energy Ltd and entitle the holder to one ordinary share in UIL Energy Ltd for 
each option exercised. The options were granted for nil consideration. Once vested, options can be exercised at any 
time up to the expiry date. There is no market or performance based vesting criteria in respect of these options. 
 

 2015 2014 

 No. of options 
Weighted 

average exercise 
price 

No. of options 
Weighted 

average exercise 
price 

  $  $ 

Outstanding at beginning of year 8,500,000 $0.28 12,450,000 $0.22 

Granted 900,000 $0.27 700,000 $0.32 

Forfeited (500,000) $0.30 (1,650,000) $0.26 

Cancelled (500,000) $0.125 - - 

Exercised - - (3,000,000) $0.05 

Outstanding at year-end 8,400,000 $0.29 8,500,000 $0.28 

Exercisable at year-end 8,400,000 $0.29 8,500,000 $0.28 

 

During the year ended 30 June 2015 no options issued to Directors, employees and consultants were exercised into 
ordinary shares. 
During the year ended 30 June 2014 the following options issued to Directors, employees and consultants were 
exercised, both with a weighted average share price of $0.125 at the time of exercise: 

- 1,000,000 options at $0.05 expiring on 30 June 2017 were exercised into ordinary shares. 
- 2,000,000 options at $0.05 expiring on 31 December 2015 were exercised into ordinary shares. 

All options exercised resulted in the issue of ordinary shares in UIL Energy Limited on a 1:1 basis.  All persons exercising 
options paid the relevant exercise price in its entirety in cash. 

The expected life of the options has been taken to be the full period of time from grant date to expiry date.  The 
respective options pricing model assumes that options will be exercised on or immediately before the expiry date.   

The options outstanding at 30 June 2015 had a weighted average exercise price of $0.29 (2014: $0.28) and a weighted 
average remaining contractual life of 4.1 years (2014: 4.3 years).  Exercise prices range from $0.24 to $0.30 in respect of 
options outstanding at 30 June 2015 (2014: $0.125 to $0.30). 

The weighted average fair value of the options granted during the year was $0.024 (2014: $0.03).  This price was 
calculated by using a Black Scholes options pricing model applying the following inputs 

  2015  2014   
Weighted average exercise price  $0.27  $0.32   
Weighted average life of the option  3.41 years  3.02 years   
Underlying share price  $0.13  $0.24   
Expected share price volatility  50%  85%   
Risk free interest rate  2.57%  2.58%   
         



Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015 

52 
 

NOTE 21 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 

Comparative volatility of similar companies has been the basis for determining expected share price volatility as it is 
assumed that this is indicative of future movements. 
 

Performance Rights 

The following performance rights were issued to Executives during the financial year: 

• 1,000,000 unlisted performance rights exercisable on or before 18 August 2021, subject to vesting conditions to 
be met by 18 August 2016. 

 

Performance rights may be granted to Executives as part of their remuneration. The performance rights have market 
based performance criteria including Total Shareholder Return along with employment retention criteria. 
 
The plan is designed to align the performance of Executives with that of the interests of shareholders and to assist in 
the retention of experienced personnel. 
 
Each performance right that satisfies the vesting condition can be converted to one Ordinary Share for nil consideration. 

 

Grant date 
Vesting 

Date 
Expiry Date 

Balance at 
the start of 

the year 

Granted 
during the 

year 

Vested and 
converted 
to shares 

during the 
year 

Forfeited 
during the 

year 

Outstanding 
at the end of 

year 

18/08/2014 18/08/2016 18/08/2021 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 
 
There were no performance rights issued in previous years. 

The weighted average fair value of the performance rights granted during the year was $0.088 (2014: nil).  This price was 
calculated by using a monte carlo simulation applying the following inputs: 
         
  2015     
Vesting period  2 years     
Underlying share price  $0.125     
Expected share price volatility  65.47%     
Risk free interest rate  2.5%     
Vesting criteria  Based on UIL Energy Ltd’s Total Shareholder Return at the end of the 

performance period and its percentile rank in relation to its peer 
reference group. 

 
(b) Other share-based payments 

 
On 6 November 2014 the Company issued advisors and brokers to the Initial Public Offering with 4,773,000 options to 
acquire shares in UIL Energy. The options have an exercise price of $0.24 and an expiry date of 31 December 2018. The 
value for the options granted was calculated by using a Black Scholes option pricing model that had the following 
additional inputs: underlying share price $0.20, expected share price volatility of 50% and a risk free rate of 2.55%. The 
value per option calculated was $0.073, total value $349,771, of which $281,740 has been included in share based 
payment expense and $68,030 included in equity as a capital raising cost.   
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NOTE 22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favourable than those 
available to other parties unless otherwise stated. 

(a) Parent entity 

The parent entity and ultimate controlling entity is UIL Energy Ltd, which is incorporated in Australia.   

(b) Subsidiaries 

Interests in subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 16. 

(c) Transactions with related parties 
 
The following related party transactions occurred during the financial period: 
 
(i)   The Company entered into the following agreements with Bizzell Capital Partners (BCP), an entity associated with 

Mr Stephen Bizzell:  
• Corporate advisory agreement in July 2014, in which BCP were paid fees of $108,449 and issued 1,000,000 

share options with an exercise price of $0.24, vest immediately and an expiry date of 31 December 2018. BCP 
provided the following services during the IPO process: strategy development and timetable management, 
structuring advice, co-ordination of the marketing strategy and capital raising activities. 

• Office lease agreement in February 2015 in which UIL Energy subleases office space from BCP, fees of 
$16,000 were payable during the financial period.   

 
(ii)  During July and August 2014 the Company converted the following convertible notes held by Directors and their 

associates: 
• Mr John de Stefani and associated companies held 80,769 convertible notes which converted to 576,921 fully 

paid ordinary shares in UIL Energy Ltd 
• Mr Stephen Bizzell and associated companies held 565,956 convertible notes which converted to 4,128,258 

fully paid ordinary shares in UIL Energy Ltd. 
 
(iii)  During 2014 certain Directors provided non-interest bearing short term loans to the company to cover the timing 

of receipts from the underwritten convertible note raise conducted during the previous financial period. During 
the current year the balance of these loans (2014: $78,846) had been repaid to the Directors in full. 

 

NOTE 23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
(a) General objectives, policies and processes 
 
In common with all other businesses, the consolidated entity is exposed to risks that arise from its use of financial 
instruments.  This note describes the consolidated entity’s objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks 
and the methods used to measure them.  Further quantitative information in respect of these risks is presented 
throughout these financial statements. 
 
The consolidated entity’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, accounts receivable and 
payable. 
 
The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the consolidated entity’s risk management objectives and 
policies and, whilst retaining ultimate responsibility for them, it has delegated the authority for designing and 
operating processes that ensure the effective implementation of the objectives and policies to the consolidated 
entity’s finance function.  The consolidated entity's risk management policies and objectives are therefore designed to 
minimise the potential impacts of these risks on the results of the consolidated entity where such impacts may be 
material. 
 
The overall objective of the Board is to set policies that seek to reduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting 
the consolidated entity’s competitiveness and flexibility.  Further details regarding these policies are set out below: 
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NOTE 23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 

(b) Credit risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that the other party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge their obligation resulting in the 
consolidated entity incurring a financial loss. This usually occurs when debtors fail to settle their obligations owing to 
the consolidated entity.  The consolidated entity’s objective is to minimise the risk of loss from credit risk exposure. 
 
The consolidated entity’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period, without taking into 
account the value of any collateral or other security, in the event other parties fail to perform their obligations under 
financial instruments in relation to each class of recognised financial asset at reporting date, is as follows: 
 

 Consolidated Entity 
 2015 2014 

 $ $ 

Cash and cash equivalents 2,553,262 20,694 

Trade and other receivables 56,206 162,881 

Security deposits - 56,162 

 2,609,468 239,737 

Credit risk is reviewed regularly by the Board. It arises from exposure to customers (trade receivables) as well as 
through deposits with financial institutions and other receivables including receivables from subsidiaries. 

Cash and cash equivalents is held with Commonwealth Bank of Australia and Westpac Banking Corporation who both 
have an AA- credit rating. 

 

(c) Liquidity risk 

 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the consolidated entity may encounter difficulties raising funds to meet financial 
obligations as they fall due.  The object of managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that the consolidated 
entity will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions. 
 
Liquidity risk is reviewed regularly by the Board. 

The consolidated entity manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and liquidity ratios such as working 
capital.  The consolidated entity’s working capital, being current assets less current liabilities, at reporting date was 
$2,386,422 (2014: ($727,814)), convertible notes have been excluded from current liabilities in the 2014 calculation as 
they are not repayable and can only be converted to equity. 
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NOTE 23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
 Carrying 

Amount 

$ 

Contractual 
Cash flows 

$ 

<6 months 

$ 

6 – 12 
months 

$ 

1 – 3 years 

$ 

>3 years 

$ 

Maturity Analysis – Consolidated 
entity– 2015 

      

Financial Liabilities       

Trade and other payables 229,127 229,127 229,127 - - - 
Financial Liabilities - - - - - - 

Maturity Analysis – Consolidated 
entity - 2014 

      

Financial Liabilities       

Trade and other payables 921,860 921,860 921,860 - - - 
Financial Liabilities 1,176,110 - - - - - 

Further information regarding commitments is included in Note 19. 
 

(d) Market risk 

 
Market risk arises from the use of interest bearing, tradable and foreign currency financial instruments.  It is the risk 
that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates 
(interest rate risk), foreign exchange rates (currency risk) or other market factors (other price risk).  The entity does 
not have any material exposure to market risk other than interest rate risk. 
 
Interest rate risk 
 
Interest rate risk arises principally from cash and cash equivalents.  The objective of interest rate risk management is 
to manage and control interest rate risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimising the return.   
 
Interest rate risk is managed with a mixture of fixed and floating rates.  For further details on interest rate risk refer to 
the tables below: 

 

2015 
Floating interest 

rate 
Fixed interest 

rate 
Non-interest bearing Total carrying amount 

as per the balance 
sheet 

Weighted average 
effective interest rate 

 $ $ $ $ % 

Financial assets      

Cash and cash equivalents 2,553,262 - - 2,553,262 2.74% 

Trade and other receivables - - 56,206 56,206 - 

Total financial assets 2,553,262 - 56,206 2,609,468  

Financial liabilities      

Trade and other payables - - 229,127 229,127 - 

Total financial liabilities - - 229,127 229,127  
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NOTE 23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

2014 
Floating interest 

rate 
Fixed interest 

rate 
Non-interest bearing Total carrying amount 

as per the balance 
sheet 

Weighted average 
effective interest rate 

 $ $ $ $ % 

Financial assets      

Cash and cash equivalents 20,694 - - 20,694 1.21% 

Trade and other receivables - - 162,881 162,881 - 

Security deposits - 56,162 - 56,162 3.1% 

Total financial assets 20,694 56,162 162,881 239,737  

Financial liabilities      

Trade and other payables - - 921,860 921,860 - 

Convertible notes - - 1,176,110 1,176,110 - 

Total financial liabilities - - 2,097,970 2,097,970  

 
The consolidated entity has performed a sensitivity analysis relating to its exposure to interest rate risk.  This 
sensitivity demonstrates the effect on the current year results and equity which could result from a change in these 
risks.  

  
The effect on profit and equity as a result of changes in the interest rate would be as follows: 

 

Carrying 
Amount 

Increase in interest rate by 1%  Decrease in interest rate by 1% 

 
Profit 

Other 
comprehensive 

income 
Profit 

Other 
comprehensive 

income 

 $ $ $ $ $ 

CONSOLIDATED – 2015      

Cash and cash equivalents 2,553,262 25,532 - (25,532) - 

CONSOLIDATED – 2014      

Cash and cash equivalents 20,694 207 - (207) - 

The above analysis assumes all other variables remain constant.   
 
 

NOTE 24 FAIR VALUES 

 
The Company uses various methods in estimating the fair value of assets and liabilities. The methods comprise: 
• Level 1 – the fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets. 
• Level 2 – the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable 

for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices). 
• Level 3 – the fair value is estimated using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market 

data. 

 
The following table presents the consolidated entity’s assets and liabilities measured and recognised at fair value at 30 
June 2015. 
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NOTE 24 FAIR VALUES (continued) 
 

  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
  $ $ $ $ 

CONSOLIDATED – 2015      
Financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss 

 - - - - 

CONSOLIDATED – 2014      
Financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss 

 - - 1,176,110 1,176,110 

 
Level 3 liabilities  
 
Movements in Level 3 assets and liabilities during the current and previous financial year are set out below:  
 

Consolidated  

   Convertible Notes Total 

   $ $ 
Balance at 1 July 2013    3,021,430 3,021,430 

Convertible Notes issued    650,000 650,000 

Convertible Notes converted to equity    (2,495,320) (2,495,320) 

Balance at 30 June 2014    1,176,110 1,176,110 

Convertible Notes converted to equity    (1,176,110) (1,176,110) 

Balance at 30 June 2015    - - 
 
The Convertible Notes have been valued based upon the most recent equity placements by the company. Movement of 
the share price of UIL Energy would adjust the fair value of the Convertible Notes as follows 5% increase $nil (2014: 
$34,956), 5% decrease $nil (2014:$0).   
 

NOTE 25 SEGMENT INFORMATION 

 
The Company has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the 
Board of Directors (chief operating decision makers) in assessing performance and determining the allocation of 
resources. The Company is managed primarily on a geographic basis - that is the location of the respective areas of 
interest (tenements) in Australia. Operating segments are determined on the basis of financial information reported to 
the Board. The Company does not have any products/services from which it derives revenue. Accordingly, 
management currently identifies the Company as having only one operating segment, being exploration for oil and 
gas. All significant operating decisions are based upon analysis of the Company as one segment. The financial results 
from the segment are equivalent to the financial statements of the Company as a whole. 
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NOTE 26 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

 
Key management personnel compensation 

The following fees were paid to key management personnel of the company: 

      Consolidated Entity 

      2015 2014 
      $ $ 

Short-term benefits      462,015 894,008 
Post-employment benefits       41,341  51,072 
Termination benefits      - - 

Share-based payments      68,487 187,161 

      571,843 1,132,241 

   

NOTE 27 AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION   

Remuneration for the auditor of the parent entity for:   

- auditing or reviewing the financial report of any entity in the 
consolidated entity 

40,533 15,000 

- taxation services 6,905 11,119 
- Other tax and business advisory services 24,793 42,522 

 72,231 68,641 
 
NOTE 28 EVENTS AFTER BALANCE DATE   
 
The following significant events occurred following the reporting period: 
 

 During September 2015 the Company withdrew its application for EPA97 located in the Canning 
basin.  
   

There have been no other events other than those listed since 30 June 2015 that impact upon the financial 
report as at 30 June 2015. 
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Declaration by Directors 
 
 
The directors of the company declare that: 
 

1. The financial statements, comprising the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
financial position, statement of cash flows, statement of changes in equity, and accompanying 
notes, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and:  

 
(a) comply with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and 

 
(b) give a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2015 and 

of its performance for the year ended on that date. 
 

2. The consolidated entity has included in the notes to the financial statements an explicit and 
unreserved statement of compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

 
3. In the directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to 

pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.  
 
 
The directors have been given the declarations by the chief executive officer and chief financial officer 
required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.  
 
This declaration is signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors. 
 
 

 
 
John de Stefani 
Managing Director  
 
Brisbane 
21 September 2015 
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